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From: Gerver, Noor <Noor.Gerver@dlapiper.com>

Sent: maandag 15 maart 2021 10:31

To: Hautvast, Tom <Tom.Hautvast@dlapiper.com>; Coenraads, Michiel
<Michiel.Coenraads@dlapiper.com>

Cc: Boer, Manon den <Manon.denBoer@dlapiper.com>

Subject: RE: EBRD

Tom, Michiel,

1. We refer to our earlier email with our considerations. We reviewed the new
scenario from different angels, but based on our notarial rules of conduct our
position unfortunately needs to remain unchanged.

2 . We understand that the proposed scenario is different from the first option is
that not only the guarantee will be cancelled, but that in addition an ‘at arm’s
length’ purchase price will be paid for the shares in Danube Holding BV. We
assume that in the new scenario the guarantee will also be cancelled.

3. The fact that an ‘at arm’s length’ purchase price will be paid for the shares in
Danube Holding BV does not change our position that, based on our notarial
rules of conduct, we cannot execute the deed of transfer of the shares,
knowing that the transfer of shares will frustrate the attachment that Bemol
levied on the Moldavian assets.

4 . We understand that in your view the proposed transaction may not result in an
‘actio pauliana’, but our opinion is not only based on the question whether the
transaction would be fraudulent towards creditors, but is also based on the fact
that third party rights will be frustrated. Notaries have to take interests of third
parties into account when executing a notarial deed.

5. We, as notaries, cannot assess whether a sale and transfer against payment of
a purchase price will bring Bemol in a better position or not. Whether this is the
case or not, the transfer will still result in a tort toward Bemol. In connection
herewith we note that the purchase price will not be received by Mr. Moser
personally, but by Thomo Invest Ltd, as seller of the shares.

6. In a tort scenario we. as notaries. do not have the possibility to take all
circumstances of the transaction into account, i.e. in this scenario whether the
shares will be sold and transferred against a purchase price.

7 . Our position therefor remains unchanged for all three proposed scenarios, i.e.
sale, both against an ‘at arm’s length’ purchase price as well as against the
release of the guarantee, as well the vesting of a right of pledge on the Dutch
shares).

8. In the end, it is a judge who needs to decide whether it is lawful to transfer the
shares or not.
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Conclusion

1 . We have no other choice than to conclude that our position remains
unchanged.

2 . The reason for our position is not the legal title for the transaction, but the
transfer of the shares resulting in frustrating Bemol’s rights, and we cannot
assess whether in this scenario he will be better off.

Is it still not possible to transfer shares at a higher level in the structure, to avoid
Dutch notarial involvement?

Regards,
Manon/Noor

Noor Gerver
Kandidaat Notaris
T

+31205419840
M:

+31611699071

DLA Piper Nederland N.V.
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Click here to visit our Coronavirus Resource Center. This email is from DLA Piper Nederland
N.V.,, advocaten, notarissen, belastingadviseurs. The contents of this email and any
attachments are confidential to the intended recipient. They may not be disclosed to or used by
or copied in any way by anyone other than the intended recipient. For more information on
how we process personal data please see www.dlapiper.com/privacy-policy. If this email is
received in error, please contact DLA Piper Nederland N.V. on +31 (0)20 541 98 88 quoting
the name of the sender and the email address to which it has been sent and then delete it.
Please note that neither DLA Piper Nederland N.V. nor the sender accepts any responsibility
for viruses and it is your responsibility to scan or otherwise check this email and any
attachments. DLA Piper Nederland N.V. is registered with the Trade Register of the Chamber
of Commerce under number 34207878, and has its registered office at Amstelveenseweg 638,
1081 JJ Amsterdam, the Netherlands. DLA Piper Nederland N.V. is regulated by the
Netherlands Bar Association and is part of DLA Piper, a global law firm, operating through
various separate and distinct legal entities. For further information, please refer to
www.dlapiper.com.

OFFICIAL USE

To learn more about EBRD classifications, visit www.ebrd.com/ic
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This message may contain privileged information. If you have received this message
by mistake, please keep it confidential and return it to the sender.

Although we have taken steps to minimise the risk of transmitting software viruses,
the EBRD accepts no liability for any loss or damage caused by computer viruses and
would advise you to carry out your own virus checks.

The contents of this e-mail do not necessarily represent the views of the EBRD.

Click here to visit our Coronavirus Resource Center. This email is from DLA Piper
Nederland N.V., advocaten, notarissen, belastingadviseurs. The contents of this email
and any attachments are confidential to the intended recipient. They may not be
disclosed to or used by or copied in any way by anyone other than the intended
recipient. For more information on how we process personal data please see
www.dlapiper.com/privacy-policy. If this email is received in error, please contact DLA
Piper Nederland N.V. on +31 (0)20 541 98 88 quoting the name of the sender and the
email address to which it has been sent and then delete it. Please note that neither
DLA Piper Nederland N.V. nor the sender accepts any responsibility for viruses and it
is your responsibility to scan or otherwise check this email and any attachments. DLA
Piper Nederland N.V. is registered with the Trade Register of the Chamber of
Commerce under number 34207878, and has its registered office at
Amstelveenseweg 638, 1081 JJ Amsterdam, the Netherlands. DLA Piper Nederland
N.V. is regulated by the Netherlands Bar Association and is part of DLA Piper, a global
law firm, operating through various separate and distinct legal entities. For further
information, please refer to www.dlapiper.com.
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